
 1 

 
 

NORTH COAST RAILROAD AUTHORITY (NCRA) 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
Wednesday, February 14, 2007 ~ 10:00 a.m. 

Willits City Council Chambers  
111 East Commercial Street, Willits 

Mendocino County  
 

Approved Minutes 
 

 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER  

 

 Chairman Hemphill called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 

B. ROLL CALL  

 

 Directors Present: Simonson, Colfax, Ollivier, Woolley (arrives at 10:25), and Chairman  
         Hemphill 
 Directors Absent: Kelley 
 Also Present:  Executive Director Mitch Stogner, Legal Counsel Christopher Neary, and 
 Recording Secretary Heather Newell 
 

C. AGENDA APPROVAL  

 

 Upon Motion by Director Simonson, seconded by Director Ollivier, and carried unanimously 
 (4-0) the agenda was approved as presented. 
 

D. MATTERS FROM THE BOARD 

 

 Director Simonson said that Don Edmisten was recovering from being hospitalized earlier in 
 the month.  He reminded all in attendance of MR. Edmisten’s extraordinary efforts to preserve 
 and restore rail service on the North Coast.  On behalf of the NCRA Board and staff, he extended 
 best wishes to Don and his family and wished him a speedy recovery.  
 

E. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

  1. Approval of Minutes – January 2007 
  2. Approval of Financial Statements - January 2007 
  3. Approval of Warrants Issued – January 2007 
  4. Approval of Executive Director’s Expenses – January 2007  
  5. Approval of Sonoma County Accounting Fees for Fiscal Year 07-08 
 

Upon Motion by Director Ollivier, seconded by Director Colfax, Consent Calendar items E.1 – 
E.5 were approved unanimously (4-0). 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT  

  



 2 

 No Public Comment 
 

G. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS 

  
1.    Action to Approve Preparation of a Notice of Preparation of Environmental Impact Report on 

Reopening Russian River Division of the Northwestern Pacific Railroad. 
 
 Executive Director Stogner told the Board that the Notice of Preparation (NOP) is the first 

step in development of the EIR under California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for 
freight operations on the Russian River Division. 

 
 Upon motion by Director Simonson, seconded by Director Colfax, staff was directed to 

develop a Notice of Preparation (NOP) for an EIR for freight operations on the Russian River 
Division.  Motion was approved unanimously (4-0). 

  
H. STAFF REPORTS 

  
1. Executive Director – Mitch Stogner 

 
   A. 32.4 – Emergency Funding for Fields Landing 
 

Executive Director Stogner said that in 2007 NCRA will be making repairs to the railroad right-
of-way.  He said that in April 2006 the CTC approved the use of $4.9 million in TCRP funding to 
begin repairing the damage caused by the 05-06 storms.  He also said that in October the CTC 
allocated $1.475 million to repair levees, debris removal, and track work.  He said that the work 
is 99% complete.   

 
Mr. Stogner said that in March 2007 NCRA will request the second allocation of $690,000 from 
the CTC  under project 32.4 to repair Fields Landing levee in Humboldt County.  He said that the 
work is scheduled for June 2007. 
 
Director Ollivier said that it is good to hear that the levee in Fields Landing will be repaired in 
this construction season. 
 
Director Simonson asked if the vegetation control included in the CTC application is ongoing.  
NCRA’s contract engineer, Dave Anderson said that the first step will be to get a Best Practices 
Manual approved so that the actual vegetation removal can begin.  Mr. Anderson said that 
NCRA’s environmental consulting firm, Kleinfelder, is working with CalTrans on the Best 
Practices Manual. 
 
Director Simonson asked what the timeframe for spraying vegetation was.  Dave Anderson said 
that the spraying will commence in 2008.   

 
B. 32.9 – Crossing Signals from Lombard to Ignacio 

 
Executive Stogner said that in November 2006 the CTC approved the use of $25 million to make 
repairs from Lombard to Windsor to bring the track to Class III standard for freight (40 mph). 
 
Mr. Stogner said that in March 2007 NCRA will ask the CTC for the first allocation of $1.533 
million to make the repairs to crossings from Lombard to Ignacio.  He said this will include repair 
of 7 crossings.  He also said that subsequent allocations in April will be used to repair the 



 3 

structures that will allow the use of track equipment and work trains to move up the line to 
Windsor.  He said that there are a total of 53 grade crossings, 38 bridges, installation of 50,000 
ties, and 62,000 tons of ballast, which will require at least three CTC allocations and three 
contracts to complete the repair of 62 miles from Lombard to Windsor. 
 

C. Categorical Exemption for Repairs on the Russian River Division  
 

Executive Director Stogner said that NCRA has prepared a Categorical Exemption for all of the 
above mentioned work under 32.9 since the signals, bridges and track work will involve 
replacement in-kind, within the existing right-of-way.  He also said that the Categorical 
Exemption under CEQA has been sent to all of the required agencies and the 30 day response 
period commenced in February 6. 

 
 D.  Reintroduction of SB 792 (Chesbro) 

 
Executive Director Stogner told the Board that Senator Wiggins has agreed to carry legislation 
similar to SB 792 (Chesbro) to provide NCRA with much needed agency funding to take care of 
vegetation control and other health and safety hazards along the right-of-way.   

   
 2. Engineer’s Report – Dave Anderson - NCRA Project Manager 
  
 NCRA Project Manager, Dave Anderson presented the Board with a Gant Chart that showed the 
 repair schedule.  He said that the schedule is a working document and he would update the 
 schedule as needed.   
 
 Mr. Anderson said that there are a few critical path items, one of which is the repairs at 
 Schellville.  He said that he, Mr. Stogner and representatives from SMART will be meeting with 
 the Department of Fish and Game on Friday.  He said that the Department of Fish and game 
 received a FEMA grant to repair the breeches in the levee and Fish and Game is willing to work 
 with NCRA to repair this area.  Mr. Anderson said that the schedule will be accelerated wherever 
 possible to ensure the completion of the Lombard to Windsor repairs by April 2008. 
 

3. Operator’s Report - John Williams – NWP Co. 
 

 Mr. Williams said that he would like to see the repairs completed earlier than April 2008.  He said 
 the schedule has financial implications to the Operator.  He also said that the agency that 
 regulates the safety for operations of the trains is the FRA.  He said that NCRA will be held 
 responsible if the work is not completed to the satisfaction of FRA.  He said that the Operator will 
 also be held responsible for the quality of the repair work.  He said the FRA is cooperative and 
 willing to help.  He said that the FRA would like to have a copy of the signal bid packages so that 
 it can offer input before the RFP is issued.  
 
 Mr. Williams said that the Operator has the exclusive right to operate work trains.  He said he 
 does not want to employ people temporarily for this work.  He said he would like to start running 
 work trains and go right into operating freight trains with the same workforce.  If this means 
 operating to Petaluma only, initially, he said that he would be open to that option.  He said there 
 is sufficient business all along the Russian River Division, but not presently enough to repair the 
 line all the way to Willits. 
 
 Mr. Williams said that he has attended meetings with the Port of Oakland and the Port of 
 Humboldt Bay and is optimistic that both Ports can agree on an MOU to utilize the Port of 



 4 

 Oakland’s expertise that will help open the railroad from the North.  He said that the quarry at 
 Island Mountain is still an option and he remains optimistic that the rail line will be operational 
 all the way to Samoa. 
 
 4. Legal Counsel - Chris Neary 

 
 A.  Report on Surface Transportation Board (STB) Determination 
 
Legal Counsel Neary said that the Surface Transportation Board issued a decision last week 
regarding a complaint filed by the bankruptcy trustee for California western against NCRA for its 
failure to provide rail service to California Western.  He said the STB denied the California 
Western complaint, and ruled in NCRA’s favor. 
 
 B.  Notice from US Coast Guard 
 
Legal Counsel Neary said that he has received notice form the US Coast Guard that penalties for 
the Black Point Bridge have been reduced to $20,000 with the likelihood of a complete 
elimination of the fine, assuming continued maintenance of the bridge. 
 
 
 The Board convened into Closed Session at 12:30 p.m. 

 
I. CLOSED SESSION 

 

 1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – Existing Litigation   
  (One Case) Gov Code Section 54956.9 (a) 
  NWPY vs. NCRA 

 

  2.          CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-Initiation of litigation 
                Government Code Section 54956.9 (c) one case 
                Announcement of the litigation would jeopardize NCRA’s  
                Ability to conclude existing settlement negotiations to its advantage. 
 

 3.           CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-Initiation of Litigation 
   Government Code Section 54956.9 (c) 
   Litigation to be discussed:  Enforcement of Billboard Removal on NCRA   
   property. 

    

  The Board reconvened into Open Session at 1:20 p.m. 
 

J.  ANNOUNCEMENT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

 

 The Board met with Legal Counsel, received information and gave direction. 
 
 Item I.3 - Upon Motion by Director Woolley, seconded by Director Simonson, the Board directed 
 staff to  prepare another letter for Board approval on March 14, 2007 to CBS Outdoor requesting 
 removal of the billboards along the NCRA right-of-way from Eureka to Arcata. 
 

  

 

K.    ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 



 5 

  
 March 14, 2007- 11:00 a.m. 
 Healdsburg City Council Chambers 
 401 Grove Street 
 Mendocino County  
 

L.     ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

Chairman Hemphill adjourned the meeting at 1:25 p.m. 

     


